


















































































































IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CHANCERY DIVISION 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) 
ex rel. KWAME RAOUL, Attorney General ) 
of the State of Illinois, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) No. 2021-CH-05279 

) 
METAL MANAGEMENT MIDWEST, INC., ) 
d/b/a SIMS METAL MANAGEMENT, an  ) 
Illinois corporation,  ) 

) 
Defendant. ) 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
AND CIVIL PENALTIES 

Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ex rel. KWAME RAOUL, Attorney 

General of the State of Illinois, on his own motion and at the request of the Illinois Environmental 

Protection Agency (“Illinois EPA”), complains of Defendant, METAL MANAGEMENT 

MIDWEST, INC., d/b/a SIMS METAL MANAGEMENT, as follows: 

COUNT I 

FAILURE TO DEMONSTRATE OVERALL REDUCTION IN UNCONTROLLED 
EMISSIONS OF AT LEAST 81 PERCENT 

1. This Count is brought on behalf of the People of the State of Illinois, ex. rel. Kwame

Raoul, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, against Defendant, METAL MANAGEMENT 

MIDWEST, INC., d/b/a SIMS METAL MANAGEMENT (“Sims”), on his own motion and at the 

request of the Illinois EPA, pursuant to Section 42(d) and (e) of the Illinois Environmental 

Protection Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS 5/42(d) and (e) (2020).  

2. The Illinois EPA is an administrative agency of the State of Illinois created by the

Illinois General Assembly in Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2020), and charged, inter alia, 
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with the duty of enforcing the Act. 

3. At all times relevant to this First Amended Complaint, Sims was and is an Illinois 

corporation in good standing.   

4. At all times relevant to this First Amended Complaint, Sims owned and operated 

and continues to own and operate a metal shredding and recycling facility at 2500 South Paulina 

Street, Chicago, Illinois (“Facility”). As of the date of the filing of this First Amended Complaint, 

the Facility is located in an area of Environmental Justice (“EJ”) concern as identified using Illinois 

EPA EJ Start.   

5. Sims receives, stores, recycles, and ships ferrous and non-ferrous recyclable 

metallic materials at the Facility, including end-of-life vehicles (“ELV”), major appliances, and 

other post-consumer sheet metal and metal clips.   

6. ELVs and other metallic materials are processed through a hammermill shredder at 

the Facility. 

7. The hammermill shredder at the Facility, through the shredding process, emits 

and/or has the potential to emit volatile organic material (“VOM”) into the environment. 

8. On December 18, 2018, Sims and the United States Environmental Protection 

Agency entered into an Administrative Consent Order (“Administrative Consent Order”). 

9. On January 22, 2019, or a date better known to Sims, Sims submitted an application 

for a Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit (“FESOP”) to the Illinois EPA (“2019 FESOP 

Application”), as required by the Administrative Consent Order. 

10. On May 13 to 14, 2021, or on dates better known to Sims, Sims initiated a proof-

of-concept emissions capture test on the hammermill shredder at the Facility as part of Sims’ 2019 

FESOP Application. The purpose of the test was to evaluate Sims’ capability for meeting 
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applicable testing methodologies to demonstrate, consistent with the requirements of the 

Administrative Consent Order, that the shredder operations did not possess the potential to emit 

25 tons or more of VOM per year, and therefore avoid emission control requirements set forth in 

the current Illinois Pollution Control Board (“Board”) regulations at 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 218, 

Subpart TT. 

11. The results of the proof-of-concept emissions capture test revealed that the 

hammermill shredder at the Facility was achieving less than 50 percent estimated capture 

efficiency, which was below the level needed to show that the Facility operates below the potential 

to emit threshold in the Board’s Part 218, Subpart TT regulations. 

12. Sims’ operation of the Facility is subject to the Act and the rules and regulations 

promulgated by the Board and the Illinois EPA.  The Board’s regulations for air pollution are 

found in Title 35, Subtitle B, Chapter I of the Illinois Administrative Code (“Board Air Pollution 

Regulations”). 

13. Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2020), provides as follows: 

No person shall: 
 

(a)  Cause or threaten or allow the discharge or emission of any contaminant 
into the environment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause air pollution 
in Illinois, either alone or in combination with contaminants from other 
sources, or so as to violate regulations or standards adopted by the Board 
under this Act. 

 
14. Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2020), provides the following 

definition: 

“Person” is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, limited 
liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate, 
political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or their legal 
representative, agent or assigns. 
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15. Sims, a corporation, is a “person” as that term is defined by Section 3.315 of the 

Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2020). 

16. Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2020), provides the following 

definition: 

“Contaminant” is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any form of 
energy, from whatever source. 

 
17. VOM is a “contaminant” as that term is defined by Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/3.165 (2020). 

18. Section 218.980(b) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

218.980(b), provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

b)  Potential to emit: 

1)  A source is subject to this Subpart if it has the potential to emit 22.7 
Mg (25 tons) or more of VOM per year, in aggregate, from emission 
units, other than furnaces at glass container manufacturing sources 
and VOM leaks from components, that are: 
 
A)  Not regulated by Subparts B, E, F, H, Q, R, S, T, (excluding 

Section 218.486 of this Part), V, X, Y, Z, or BB of this Part, 
or 
 

B)  Not included in any of the following categories: synthetic 
organic chemical manufacturing industry (SOCMI) 
distillation, SOCMI reactors, wood furniture, plastic parts 
coating (business machines), plastic parts coating (other), 
offset lithography, industrial wastewater, autobody 
refinishing, SOCMI batch processing, volatile organic liquid 
storage tanks and clean-up solvents operations. 
 

c)  If a source ceases to fulfill the criteria of subsections (a) and/or (b) of this 
Section, the requirements of this Subpart shall continue to apply to an 
emission unit which was ever subject to the control requirements of Section 
218.986 of this Part. 

 
19. Section 211.4970 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

211.4970, provides the following definition: 
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“Potential to emit (PTE)” means the maximum capacity of a stationary source to 
emit any air pollutant under its physical and operational design. Any physical or 
operational limitation on the capacity of a source to emit an air pollutant, including 
air pollution control equipment and restriction on hours of operation or on the type 
or amount of material combusted, stored, or processed, shall be treated as part of 
its design if the limitation is federally enforceable. 
 

20. The hammermill shredder at the Facility has the potential to emit 25 tons or more 

of VOM per year. 

21. Sims is subject to the control requirements of Section 218.986 of the Board Air 

Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.986, because the hammermill shredder at the Facility 

has the potential to emit 25 tons or more of VOM per year. 

22. Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

218.986(a), provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

Every owner or operator of an emission unit subject to this Subpart shall comply 
with the requirements of subsection (a), (b), (c), (d), or (e) below.  
 
(a)  Emission capture and control equipment which achieves an overall 

reduction in uncontrolled VOM emissions of at least 81 percent from each 
emission unit, . . . 

 
(Board Note: For the purpose of this provision, an emission unit is any part 
or activity at a source of a type that by itself is subject to control 
requirements in other Subparts of this Part or 40 CFR 60, incorporated by 
reference in Section 218.112, e.g., a coating line, a printing line, a process 
unit, a wastewater system, or other equipment, or is otherwise any part or 
activity at a source.) 

23. Section 211.4370 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

211.4370, provides the following definition:  

“Owner or operator” means any person who owns, operates, leases, controls, or 
supervises a source, an emission unit or air pollution control equipment.” 
 

24. Sims is an “owner or operator” as that term is defined by Section 211.4370 of the 

Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 211.4370. 

25. Section 211.1950 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
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211.1950, provides the following definition:  

“Emission unit” means any part or activity at a stationary source that emits or has 
the potential to emit any air pollutant.” 
 

26. Section 211.6370 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

211.6370, provides the following definition:  

“Stationary source” means any building, structure, facility or installation that emits 
or may emit any air pollutant.  
 

27. Section 211.370 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

211.370, provides the following definition:  

“Air pollutant” means an air pollution agent or combination of such agents, 
including any physical, chemical, biological, radioactive (including source 
material, special nuclear material, and byproduct material) substance or matter 
which is emitted into or otherwise enters the atmosphere.  Such term includes any 
precursors to the formation of any air pollutant, to the extent that the relevant statute 
or rule has identified such precursor or precursors for particular purpose for which 
the term “air pollutant” is used.  
 

28. Sims’ Facility is a “stationary source,” where Sims operates its hammermill 

shredder, which is an “emission unit” capable of emitting VOM, which is an “air pollutant” as 

those terms are defined in Sections 211.6370, 211.1950, and 211.370, respectively, of the Board 

Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 211.6370, 211.1950, and 211.370.  

29. As the owner or operator of an emission unit subject to Section 218.986(a) of the 

Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.986(a), Sims was required to demonstrate 

an overall reduction in uncontrolled VOM emissions of at least 81 percent from its shredding 

operations at the time of the rule’s effectiveness or applicability to Sims’ Facility. 

30. By failing to demonstrate that its shredding operations have achieved an overall 

reduction in uncontrolled VOM emissions of at least 81 percent, Sims violated and continues to 

violate Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.986(a). 
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31. By violating Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 218.986(a), Sims thereby violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2020). 

32. Violations of the pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue 

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of preliminary, and after trial, a 

permanent injunctive relief. 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully requests 

that this Court enter a preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff 

against Defendant, METAL MANAGEMENT MIDWEST, INC., on this Count I: 

 1. Finding that Defendant violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2020), 

and Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.986(a); 

 2. Enjoining Defendant from any further violations of Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/9(a)(2020), and Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 218.986(a); 

 3. Ordering Defendant to undertake all necessary corrective action that will result in 

a final and permanent abatement of the violations of Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) 

(2020), and Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

218.986(a); 

4. Assessing against Defendant a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) 

for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulations, with an additional penalty of Ten Thousand 

Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of each violation;  

 5. Ordering Defendant to pay all costs of this action, including attorney, expert 

witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 

 6. Granting such other relief as this Court deems appropriate and just.  
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COUNT II 
 

CONSTRUCTING AN EMISSION SOURCE WITHOUT A PERMIT 
 

1-8. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 5, 12, 

and 14 through 15 of Count I as paragraphs 1 through 8 of this Count II. 

9. On October 4, 2022, Illinois EPA and the United States Environmental Protection 

Agency representatives conducted an inspection of the Facility. 

10. At the time of the October 4, 2022 inspection, a stationary shear was operating at 

the Facility (“Shear”).  

11. In or about 2020, or a date or dates better known to Sims, Sims constructed the 

Shear at the Facility that is used to cut thick pieces of metal and alloys to specifications. 

12. The Shear, by its cutting of metals and alloys, emits and/or has the potential to emit 

particulate matter (“PM”) into the environment. 

13. Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2020), provides as follows: 

No person shall: 

 *  *  * 

(b) Construct, install, or operate any equipment, facility, vehicle, vessel, 
or aircraft capable of causing or contributing to air pollution or 
designed to prevent air pollution, of any type designated by Board 
regulations, (1) without a permit granted by the Agency unless 
otherwise exempt by this Act or Board regulations or (2) in violation 
of any conditions imposed by such permit.   

 
14. Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

201.142, provides as follows: 

No person shall cause or allow the construction of any new emission source 
or any new air pollution control equipment, or cause or allow the 
modification of any existing emission source or air pollution control 
equipment, without first obtaining a construction permit from the Agency, 
except as provided in Sections 201.146 or Section 201.170(b) of this Part. 
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15. Section 3.115 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (2020), provides the following 

definition: 

“Air pollution” is the presence in the atmosphere of one or more 
contaminants in sufficient quantities and of such characteristics and 
duration as to be injurious to human, plant, or animal life, to health, or to 
property, or to unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property. 
  

16. The Shear is capable of emitting contaminants into the atmosphere in sufficient 

quantities and of such characteristics and duration as to be injurious to human, plant, or animal 

life, to health, or to property, or to unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property 

and is capable of causing or contributing to “air pollution” as that term is defined by Section 3.115 

of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (2020).  

17. Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

201.102, provides, in pertinent part, the following definitions:   

“Air Contaminant”: any solid, liquid or gaseous matter, any odor or any 
form of energy, that is capable of being released into the atmosphere from 
an emission source. 
 
“Construction”: commencement of on-site fabrication, erection or 
installation of an emission source or of air pollution control equipment. 
 
“Emission Source”: any equipment or facility of a type capable of emitting 
specified air contaminants to the atmosphere.  
 
“New Emission Source”: any emission source, the construction or 
modification of which is commenced on or after April 14, 1972.  
 
“Specified Air Contaminant”: any air contaminant as to which this Subtitle 
contains emissions standards or other specific limitations and any 
contaminant regulated in Illinois pursuant to Section 9.1 of the Act. 
 

18. The building and/or installation at the Facility of the Shear constitutes 

“construction” as that term is defined by Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 

315 Ill. Adm. Code 201.102. 
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19. PM is capable of being released into the atmosphere from the Shear, which is an 

“emission source”, and is therefore an “air contaminant” as those terms are defined in Section 

201.102 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.102.   

20. Subtitle B (Air Pollution), of Title 35 (Environmental Protection) of the Illinois 

Code of Administrative Regulations contains specific limits on PM, and therefore PM is a 

“specified air contaminant” as that term is defined in Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution 

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.102. 

 21. The Shear was constructed after April 14, 1972, and constitutes a “new emission 

source,” as that term is defined in Section 201.102 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 201.102. 

 22. By causing or allowing the construction of a new emission source, the Shear, 

without applying for and obtaining a construction permit from the Illinois EPA, Sims violated 

Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142, and thereby 

violated Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2020). 

23. Sections 9.12of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.12 (2020), provides, in pertinent part, as 

follows:  

(a) An applicant for a new or revised air pollution construction permit 
shall pay a fee, as established in this Section, to the Agency at the 
time that he or she submits the application for a construction permit. 
Except as set forth below, the fee for each activity or category listed 
in this Section is separate and is cumulative with any other 
applicable fee listed in this Section. 

 
    *   *   * 
 

(j)  If the owner or operator undertakes construction without obtaining 
an air pollution construction permit, the fee under this Section is still 
required.  Payment of the required fee does not preclude the Agency 
or the Attorney General or other authorized persons from pursuing 
enforcement against the applicant for failure to have an air pollution 
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construction permit prior to commencing construction. 
 

24. From 2020 through the date of filing of this First Amended Complaint, or a date or 

dates better known to Sims, Sims failed to pay the applicable fee for a construction permit prior to 

constructing the Shear.  

25. By failing to pay applicable construction permit fees, Sims violated Section 9.12(j) 

of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.12(j) (2020).  

26. Violations of the pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue 

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of preliminary and, after trial, 

permanent injunctive relief. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully requests 

that this Court enter a preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff 

against Defendant, METAL MANAGEMENT MIDWEST, INC., on this Count II: 

1. Finding that the Defendant violated Section 9(b) and 9.12(j) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/9(b) and 9.12(j) (2020), and Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 201.142; 

2. Enjoining the Defendant from any further violations of Section 9(b) and 9.12(j) of 

the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) and 9.12(j) (2020), and Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution 

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142; 

3. Ordering Defendant to take all necessary immediate corrective action which will 

result in a final and permanent abatement of the violation of Section 9(b) and 9.12(j) of the Act, 

415 ILCS 5/9(b) and 9.12(j) (2020), and Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 

35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142; 
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4. Assessing against Defendant a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) 

for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulations, with an additional penalty of Ten Thousand 

Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of each violation;  

 5. Ordering Defendant to pay all costs of this action, including attorney, expert 

witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 

 6. Granting such other relief as this Court deems appropriate and just.  

COUNT III 
 

OPERATING A STATIONARY SOURCE WITHOUT A CLEAN AIR ACT PERMIT 
PROGRAM PERMIT OR FEDERALLY ENFORCEABLE STATE OPERATING 

PERMIT 
 

1-11. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 5, 12, 

and 14 through 15 of Count I and paragraphs 9 through 11 of Count II as paragraphs 1 through 11 

of this Count III. 

12. Section 39.5(6)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b) (2020), provides as follows: 

6. Prohibitions. 
 

* * * 
 

b. After the applicable CAAPP permit or renewal application submittal date, 
as specified in subsection 5 of this Section, no person shall operate a 
CAAPP source without a CAAPP permit unless the complete CAAPP 
permit or renewal application for such source has been timely submitted to 
the Agency. 

 
13. Section 39.5(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1) (2020), provides, in pertinent part, 

the following definitions: 

“CAAPP” means the Clean Air Act Permit Program developed pursuant to 
Title V of the Clean Air Act. 
 
“CAAPP permit” . . . means any permit issued, renewed, amended, modified 
or revised pursuant to Title V of the Clean Air Act. 
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“CAAPP source” means any source for which the owner or operator is 
required to obtain a CAAPP permit pursuant to subsection 2 of this Section. 
 
“Emission Unit” means any part or activity of a stationary source that emits 
or has the potential to emit any air pollutant. This term is not meant to alter 
or affect the definition of the term “unit” for purposes of Title IV of the 
Clean Air Act.  
 
“Federally enforceable” means enforceable by [the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency]. 
 
“Major source” means a source for which emissions of one or more air 
pollutants meet the criteria for major status pursuant to paragraph (c) of 
subsection 2 of this Section. 

“Owner or operator” means any person who owns, leases, operates, 
controls, or supervises a stationary source.  
 
“Potential to emit” means the maximum capacity of a stationary source to 
emit any air pollutant under its physical and operational design. Any 
physical or operational limitation on the capacity of a source to emit an air 
pollutant, including air pollution control equipment and restrictions on 
hours of operation or on the type or amount of material combusted, stored, 
or processed, shall be treated as part of its design if the limitation is 
enforceable by USEPA. This definition does not alter or affect the use of 
this term for any other purposes under the Clean Air Act, or the term 
“capacity factor” as used in Title IV of the Clean Air Act or the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

 
“Regulated air pollutant” means the following: 
 
 (1) Nitrogen oxides (NOx) or any volatile organic compound. 
 

(2) Any pollutant for which a national ambient air quality standard has 
been promulgated. 

 
(3) Any pollutant that is subject to any standard promulgated under 

Section 111 of the Clean Air Act. 
 
(4) Any Class I or II substance subject to a standard promulgated under 

or established by Title VI of the Clean Air Act. 
 
(5) Any pollutant subject to a standard promulgated under Section 112 

or other requirements established under Section 112 of the Clean Air 
Act, including Sections 112(g), (j) and (r). 
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(i) Any pollutant subject to requirements under Section 112(j) 
of the Clean Air Act. Any pollutant listed under Section 
112(b) for which the subject source would be major shall be 
considered to be regulated 18 months after the date on which 
USEPA was required to promulgate an applicable standard 
pursuant to Section 112(e) of the Clean Air Act, if USEPA 
fails to promulgate such standard. 

 
(ii) Any pollutant for which the requirements of 

Section 112(g)(2) of the Clean Air Act have been met, but 
only with respect to the individual source subject to 
Section 112(g)(2) requirement. 

 
   (6) Greenhouse gases. 
 

“Source” means any stationary source (or any group of stationary sources) 
that is located on one or more contiguous or adjacent properties that are 
under common control of the same person (or persons under common 
control) and that belongs to a single major industrial grouping . . . . 
 
“Stationary source” means any building, structure, facility, or installation 
that emits or may emit any regulated air pollutant or any pollutant listed 
under Section 112(b) of the Clean Air Act. 
 

14. Section 39.5(2) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(2) (2020), provides as follows: 

2. Applicability. 
 

  a. Sources subject to this Section shall include:  
 

i. Any major source as defined in paragraph (c) 
of this subsection.  

 
    *   *   * 
  

c. For purposes of this Section the term “major source” 
means any source that is:  

 
    *   *   * 
       

iii.  A major stationary source as defined in part 
D of Title I of the Clean Air Act including:  

 
 

A.   For ozone nonattainment areas, 
sources with the potential to emit 100 
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tons or more per year of volatile 
organic compounds or oxides of 
nitrogen in areas classified as 
“marginal” or “moderate”, 50 tons or 
more per year in areas classified as 
“serious”, 25 tons or more per year in 
areas classified as “severe”, and 10 
tons or more per year in areas 
classified as “extreme”; except that 
the references in this clause to 100, 
50, 25, and 10 tons per year of 
nitrogen oxides shall not apply with 
respect to any source for which 
USEPA has made a finding, under 
Section 182(f)(1) or (2) of the Clean 
Air Act, that the requirements 
otherwise applicable to such source 
under Section 182(f) of the Clean Air 
Act do not apply. Such sources shall 
remain subject to the major source 
criteria of subparagraph (ii) of 
paragraph (c) of this subsection. 

 
15. At all times relevant to this First Amended Complaint, Sims’ Facility has been, and 

continues to be, a building, structure, facility, or installation which emits or may emit VOM and 

PM, each a “regulated air pollutant”, thereby constituting a “stationary source”, as those terms are 

defined in Section 39.5(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1) (2020). 

16. At all times relevant to this First Amended Complaint, Sims’ Facility has been, and 

continues to be, a stationary source belonging to a single major industrial grouping, thereby 

constituting a “source”, as that term is defined in Section 39.5(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1) 

(2020). 

17. Since at least December 2, 2016, or on a date or dates better known to Sims, Sims 

was located in a severe non-attainment area for ozone and the potential to emit 25 tons per year of 

VOM; and thus, is a “major source” under Section 39.5(2)(c)(iii)(A) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/39.5(c)(iii)(A) (2020).   
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18. As the owner and operator of the Facility, Sims is the “owner or operator” of a 

“CAAPP source as those terms are defined in Section 39.5(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1) 

(2020). 

19. The Shear, which is capable of emitting PM, is an “emission unit” as that term is 

defined in Section 39.5(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1) 2020.  

20. Sims, as the owner or operator of a CAAPP source, is subject to the CAAPP 

permitting requirements. 

 
21. Section 39.5(5)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5)(b) (2020), provides as follows: 

An owner or operator of a CAAPP source shall submit a single complete application 
covering all emission units at the source. 
 
 

22. Section 39.5(5)(i) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5)(i) (2020), provides as follows: 

Any applicant who fails to submit any relevant facts necessary to evaluate the 
subject source and its CAAPP application or who has submitted incorrect 
information in a CAAPP application shall, upon becoming aware of such failure 
or incorrect submittal, submit supplementary facts or correct information to the 
Agency. In addition, an applicant shall provide the Agency additional information 
as necessary to address any requirements which become applicable to the source 
subsequent to the date the applicant submitted complete CAAPP application but 
prior to release of the draft CAAPP permit. 

 
23.   Section 39.5(1.1)(a) and (b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1.1)(a) and (b) (2020), 

provides as follows: 

1.1 Exclusion from the CAAPP. 

a.  An owner or operator of a source which determines that the 
source could be excluded from the CAAPP may seek such 
exclusion prior to the date that the CAAPP application for 
the source is due but in no case later than 9 months after the 
effective date of the CAAPP through the imposition of 
federally enforceable conditions limiting the “potential to 
emit” of the source as described in paragraph (c) of 
subsection 2 of this Section, within a State operating permit 

F
IL

E
D

 D
A

T
E

: 6
/7

/2
02

3 
9:

11
 A

M
   

20
21

C
H

05
27

9



17 
 

issued pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 39 of this Act. 
After such date, an exclusion from the CAAPP may be 
sought under paragraph (c) of subsection 3 of this Section. 

 
b.   An owner or operator of a source seeking an exclusion from 

the CAAPP pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subsection must 
submit a permit application consistent with the existing State 
permit program which specifically requests such exclusion 
through the imposition of such federally enforceable 
conditions.  

 
24. The Shear, as an emission unit, must be included in a CAAPP permit as required 

by Section 39.5(5)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5)(b) (2020). 

25. Prior to operating the Shear, Sims was required to amend its 2019 FESOP 

Application to include the Shear to have a complete and accurate FESOP application in compliance 

with Section 39.5(5)(i) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5)(i) (2020).  

26. Sims failed to amend the 2019 FESOP Application to include the Shear prior to 

operating the Shear.  

27. On January 17, 2023, approximately 3 years late, Sims submitted a FESOP 

application to the Illinois EPA that included the Shear. 

28. By operating without a complete and accurate CAAPP permit or FESOP 

application from 2020 to the date of filing of this First Amended Complaint, Sims violated Section 

39.5(6)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b) (2020). 

29. Violations of the pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue 

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of preliminary and, after trial, 

permanent injunctive relief. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully requests 

that this Court enter a preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff 

against Defendant, METAL MANAGEMENT MIDWEST, INC., on this Count III: 
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1. Finding that the Defendant violated Section 39.5(6)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/39.5(6)(b) (2020); 

2. Enjoining the Defendant from any further violations of Section 39.5(6)(b) of the 

Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b) (2020); 

3. Ordering Defendant to take all necessary immediate corrective action which will 

result in a final and permanent abatement of the violation of Section 39.5(6)(b) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b) (2020); 

4. Assessing against Defendant, pursuant to Section 42(b)(5) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/42(b)(5) (2020), a civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of violation 

of Section 39.5(6)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b) (2020);  

 5. Ordering Defendant to pay all costs of this action, including attorney, expert 

witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 

 6. Granting such other relief as this Court deems appropriate and just.  

COUNT IV 
 

FAILURE TO TIMELY SUBMIT COMPLETE AND ACCURATE ANNUAL 
EMISSIONS REPORTS 

 
1-28. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 5, 

8-9, 12, 14 through 17, and 23-28 of Count I, paragraphs 9 through 11 of Count II, and 

paragraphs 12 through 18 of Count III as paragraphs 1 through 28 of this Count IV. 

29. Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2020), provides as follows: 

  No person shall: 

  a) Cause or threaten or allow the discharge or emission of any  
   contaminant into the environment in any State so as to cause or  
   tend to cause air pollution in Illinois, either alone or in   
   combination with contaminants from other sources, or so as to  
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   violate regulations or standards adopted by the Board under this  
   Act; 
 
30. Section 254.132(a) of the Illinois EPA Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 254.132(a), provides as follows: 

Failure to file a complete Annual Emissions Report by the applicable 
deadlines prescribed in Section 254.137(a) of this Subpart shall be a 
violation of this Part and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.302(a). 
 

31. Section 254.137(a) of the Illinois EPA Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 254.137(a), provides as follows: 

All Annual Emissions Reports are due by May 1 of the year following the 
calendar year in which the emissions took place. 
 

32. Section 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

201.302(a), provides as follows: 

The owner or operator of any emission unit or air pollution control 
equipment meeting the applicability criteria contained in 35 Ill. Adm. 
Code 254.102 shall submit to the Agency as a minimum, annual 
reports detailing the nature, specific emission units and total annual 
quantities of all specified air contaminant emissions; provided, 
however, that the Agency may require more frequent reports where 
necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Act and this Chapter. 
 

33. Defendant, as the owner or operator of emissions units, was required pursuant to 

Section 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.302(a), and 

Sections 254.132(a) and 254.137(a) of the Illinois EPA Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 254.132(a) and 254.137(a), to submit Annual Emissions Reports (“AERs”) for all emission 

units, including the Shear, to the Illinois EPA each year by May 1 for the preceding calendar year.  

34. On January 17, 2023, Sims submitted revised AERs for calendar years 2020 and 

2021 that included the Shear, between approximately 1 year and 8 months and 2 years and 8 

months late; and thus, failed to timely submit a complete and accurate AER for calendar years 
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2020 and 2021 to Illinois EPA.   

35. By failing to timely submit complete and accurate AERs for the years 2020 and 

2021, Defendant violated Section 254.132(a) of the Illinois EPA’s Air Pollution Regulations, 35 

Ill. Adm. Code 254.132(a), and also violated Section 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution 

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.302(a), and thereby also violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 

415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2020).   

36. Violations of the pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue 

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of preliminary and, after trial, 

permanent injunctive relief. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully requests 

that this Court enter a preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff 

against Defendant, METAL MANAGEMENT MIDWEST, INC., on this Count IV: 

1. Finding that the Defendant violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2020), 

and Sections 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.302(a), 

and Section 254.132(a) of the Illinois EPA’s Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

254.132(a); 

2. Enjoining the Defendant from any further violations of Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/9(a) (2020), and Sections 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 201.302(a), and Section 254.132(a) of the Illinois EPA’s Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 254.132(a); 

3. Ordering Defendant to take all necessary immediate corrective action which will 

result in a final and permanent abatement of the violation of Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 

5/9(a) (2020), and Sections 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
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201.302(a), and Section 254.132(a) of the Illinois EPA’s Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 254.132(a); 

4. Assessing against Defendant a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) 

for each violation of the Act and pertinent regulations, with an additional penalty of Ten Thousand 

Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day of each violation;  

 5. Ordering Defendant to pay all costs of this action, including attorney, expert 

witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this action; and 
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F
IL

E
D

 D
A

T
E

: 6
/7

/2
02

3 
9:

11
 A

M
   

20
21

C
H

05
27

9



22 
 

 6. Granting such other relief as this Court deems appropriate and just.  

       
      PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
      ex rel. KWAME RAOUL,  
      Attorney General of the State of Illinois 
 
      MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief 
      Environmental Enforcement/ 
      Asbestos Litigation Division 
 
 

___/s/ Stephen J. Sylvester________ 
      STEPHEN J. SYLVESTER, Chief 
            Environmental Bureau 
            Assistant Attorney General 

 
 Of Counsel 
 Arlene Haas 
 Kevin Garstka 
 Assistant Attorneys General 
 Environmental Bureau 
 69 W. Washington St., Suite 1800 
 Chicago, Illinois 60602 
 (312) 814-3153/1511  
 arlene.haas@ilag.gov 
 kevin.garstka@ilag.gov 
 maria.cacaccio@ilag.gov 
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Sims Draft Permit Comments 2024 
 

CDPH Must Use Both the 2014 and the 2020 Rules for Recycling Facilities 

 
The most recent edition of the CDPH Large Recycling Facility Rules are the 2020 LRF Rules 
(Rules for Large Recycling Facilities 2020 Update). However, these 2020 rules explicitly state 
that they are a supplement, not a replacement to the 2014 Recycling Facility Rules (Rules and 
Regulations for Recycling Facilities, March 2014). In part 1 of the 2020 LRF Rules in the Scope 
and Purpose section it is clearly stated “These rules supplement the requirements contained in the 
Recycling Facility Rules dated March 19, 2014, as amended.” As such, CDPH is required to use 
both the 2014 and the 2020 rules when considering permit applications. 
 

CDPH Must Consider Sims’ Track Record of Law-Breaking 

 
One of the requirements of the CDPH 2014 Recycling Facility Rules is that CDPH is required to 
consider the “Compliance History” of the permit applicant when assessing whether to issue or 
renew a permit.1 Section 4.0 of the 2014 rules requires the CDPH Commissioner to “conduct an 
evaluation of the applicant’s prior experience in recycling or junk facility operations or other 
waste handling operations.”2 This section also empowers the Commissioner to “deny or refuse to 
renew a permit” if the evaluation shows that the applicant has “violated any federal, state, or 
local laws, regulations, standards, permit conditions, or ordinances” within the past three years.3 
This section also specifies that operating a “waste handling facility without required permits” is 
one of the types of legal violations by which the Commissioner can deny or refuse to renew a 
permit.4  
The Commissioner must also assess whether the applicant facility has posed a threat to continued 
compliance with any laws while the permit has been under review. A permit can be denied if the 
Commissioner finds that while CDPH considered the permit application the facility conditions 
posed a “material threat to continued compliance with any of the laws, regulations, standards, 
permit conditions, or ordinances identified” in Section 4.0.5  
 
The operating permit Sims is currently seeking was applied for in November 2021. Applying the 
three-year a “lookback” period described in Section 4.0(1) of the 2014 Recycling Facility Rules, 
CDPH must consider any violations of law by Sims since November 2018.  
 
 
 

 
1 See Section 3.0, City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, 
March 2014 
2 Section 4.0, City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, March 
2014 
3 Section 4.0(1) City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, 
March 2014 
4 Section 4.0(1) City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, 
March 2014 
5 Section 4.0(2) City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, 
March 2014 



Sims has a Track Record of Violating State, Federal, and Local Laws Since 2018 

 
Uncontrolled Emissions from Sims Hammermill Shredder 

 
On May 13 and 14, 2021 Sims “initiated a proof-of-concept emissions capture test on the 
hammermill shredder”. According to the Illinois Attorney General, the “results of the proof-of-
concept emissions capture test revealed that the hammermill shredder at the Facility was 
achieving less than 50 percent estimated capture efficiency”.6 A “capture efficiency” below 50% 
falls far short of the 81% efficiency required by the Illinois Board Air Pollution Regulations. As 
recently as 2023, the IL Attorney General stated that by “failing to demonstrate that its shredding 
operations have achieved an overall reduction in uncontrolled VOM emissions of at least 81 
percent, Sims violated and continues to violate Section 218.986(a) of the Board Air Pollution 
Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.986(a)”7 and also “thereby violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 
415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2020)”8 
 

Constructing a Stationary Shear without a Permit 
 

In October of 2022 representatives from the IL EPA and the US EPA conducted an inspection of 
Sims’ Recycling Facility. During this inspection it was discovered that Sims was operating a 
Stationary Shear which they had not received a permit to construct or operate.9 “By causing or 
allowing the construction of a new emission source, the Shear, without applying for and 
obtaining a construction permit from the Illinois EPA, Sims violated Section 201.142 of the 
Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142, and thereby violated Section 9(b) 
of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2020).”10 In constructing the Stationary Shear, Sims additionally 
violated the following Illinois laws and regulations: Section 9(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) 
(2020); Section 201.142 of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.142.  
 

Operating a Stationary Shear without a Permit 
 

According to the Illinois Attorney General, the Sims’ Stationary Shear is classified as an 
“emission unit” per Section 39.5(1) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1) (2020).11 The Clean Air Act 
Permit Program (CAAPP) was developed pursuant to Title V of the Clean Air Act and regulates 

 
6 Count I Section 10-11, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
7 Count I Section 30, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for Injunctive 
Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
8 Count I Section 31, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for Injunctive 
Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
9 Count II Section 22, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for Injunctive 
Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
10 Count II Section 22, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for Injunctive 
Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
11 See Count III Section 13, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 



emission units like Sims’ Stationary Shear. “The Shear, as an emission unit, must be included in 
a CAAPP permit as required by Section 39.5(5)(b) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5)(b) (2020).”12 
 
“Prior to operating the Shear, Sims was required to amend its 2019 FESOP [Federally 
Enforceable State Operating Permit] Application to include the Shear to have a complete and 
accurate FESOP application in compliance with Section 39.5(5)(i) of the Act, 415 ILCS 
5/39.5(5)(i) (2020).”13 Despite this legal requirement, “Sims failed to amend the 2019 FESOP 
Application to include the Shear prior to operating the Shear.”14 Sims continued to operate the 
Shear without amending their FESOP application until January of 2023 when they “submitted a 
FESOP application to the Illinois EPA that included the Shear.”15 “By operating without a 
complete and accurate CAAPP permit or FESOP application… Sims violated Section 39.5(6)(b) 
of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b) (2020)”16 
 

Constructing and Operating a Stationary Shear Without CDPH Permitting 
 

In addition to constructing and operating the Stationary Shear without a construction or operating 
permit from the IL EPA, Sims also did not receive a construction or operating permit from 
CDPH. In Sims' currently held LRF Operating permit, Table One in Attachment B: Special 
Conditions, #8 includes a list of pieces of Equipment which the Permittee is "authorized to 
operate". Contained within this Table is no mention of a "Stationary Shear". 
 
Sims has not submitted any requests for a variance under the LRF Rules related to the Stationary 
Shear. Sims has not submitted any permit amendments to their currently held operating permit 
related to the installation and operation of a Stationary Shear. Sims has not sought a modification 
permit as required when new equipment is installed. Sims has sought a permit renewal when they 
should be seeking a Modification Permit.  
 
By Sims’ own admission, the Stationary Shear is used by Sims "for the mechanical 
shearing/cutting of metal material"17 Sims has no pollution control devices attached to this 
machinery and admits that “the Bonfiglioli shear consist of particulate matter (PM) and, since 
there is no exhaust stack associated with the equipment, are emitted fugiitvely [sic]”.18 
 
Sims has failed to obtain a Construction permit from the City of Chicago and CDPH for their 
Bonfiglioli Stationary Shear. Sims has also failed to make the City of Chicago and CDPH aware 

 
12 Count III Section 24, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
13 Count III Section 25, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
14 Count III Section 26, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
15 Count III Section 27, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
16 Count III Section 28, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
17 Sims' January 16, 2023 letter to IEPA: Metal Management Midwest, Inc. - Chicago Illinois Plant (ID No. 
031600FFO) Supplement to Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit Application 
18 Sims' January 16, 2023 letter to IEPA: Metal Management Midwest, Inc. - Chicago Illinois Plant (ID No. 
031600FFO) Supplement to Federally Enforceable State Operating Permit Application 



that they have built and are operating a stationary shear on their property. Sims has failed to 
request or receive a permit to operate a Stationary Shear from CDPH. By installing and operating 
the Stationary Shear, Sims has chosen to violate state law, federal law, and the Chicago 
Municipal Code. Additionally, they have violated state regulations, federal regulations, and the 
CDPH rules for LRF. Sims actions also represent a violation of the conditions placed upon them 
by their current operating permit. Each of these violations represents grounds to both terminate 
Sims currently held operating permit, as well as deny the currently sought renewal permit.  
 

Failure to Timely Submit Complete and Accurate Annual Emission Reports to IL EPA 
 

The Illinois EPA Air Pollution Regulations (35 Ill. Adm. Code 254.132(a) & 254.137(a)) and the 
Illinois Board Air Pollution Regulations (35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.302(a)) require companies like 
Sims to file complete and accurate Annual Emissions Reports (AER). Sims failed to include the 
Stationary Shear in their 2020 and 2021 Annual Emissions Reports. “By failing to timely submit 
complete and accurate AERs for the years 2020 and 2021, Defendant [Sims] violated Section 
254.132(a) of the Illinois EPA’s Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 254.132(a), and 
also violated Section 201.302(a) of the Board Air Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
201.302(a), and thereby also violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2020).19 
 

Examples of Law-Breaking Show that Sims Poses a Threat to “Continued Compliance” 
 

These examples are just a few among many examples of Sims failure and refusal to follow the 
law. These examples also show that Sims poses a significant risk of future law-breaking. Sims’ 
inability or unwillingness to follow the law show that they pose a significant danger to the 
community and the City of Chicago. Sims’ track record shows that they only make efforts to 
comply with the law when sued and forced into action by the judicial system. Such a history 
shows that if a permit is granted, there is a high likelihood that Sims will continue to violate the 
law. Section 4.0 of the 2014 2014 Recycling Facility Rules allows the Commissioner to deny a 
permit if CDPH believes the applicant poses a “material threat to continued compliance with any 
of the laws, regulations, standards, permit conditions, or ordinances”.20 Sims has a substantial 
track record of law-breaking and failure to comply with the law. The Commissioner should 
recognize Sims as a material threat to future legal compliance and deny the permit application 
per Section 4.0(2) of the 2014 Recycling Facility Rules.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other Grounds to Deny Sims’ Permit Application 

 

 
19 Count IV Section 35, KWAME RAOUL v Metal Management Midwest Inc., First Amended Complaint for 
Injunctive Relief and Civil Penalties 6/7/2023 
20 Section 4.0(2) City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, 
March 2014 



Sims is Currently Operating Under a Terminated Operating Permit. 
 

Sims is currently operating under a permit which has expired. The first page of Sims' current 
operating permit issued November 30, 2018 states that "[t]his permit allows for the operation of 
the Facility from 11/16/2018 through 11/15/2021 upon which time the permit shall terminate by 
its own terms." CDPH also allowed Sims to continue to operate on that permit if they applied for 
a subsequent operating permit before November 21, 2018. "If a subsequent operating permit is 
applied for on or before 11/21/2018, this permit shall remain in effect until the CDPH acts on the 
pending permit application." Sims' subsequent operating permit application was submitted to 
CDPH in November of 2021. Because a "subsequent operating permit" was not "applied for... 
before 11/21/2018", Sims' operating permit "terminate[d] by its own terms" on November 15, 
2021. Without a valid and current Large Recycling Facility permit, Sims is operating illegally 
and should cease operations immediately. 
 

Sims has filed an incomplete Annual Recycling Report.  
Under Chicago Municipal Code, a Recycling Permit cannot be renewed if the applicant has not 

submitted a complete Annual Recycling Report. 
 
The 2023 Annual Recycling Report submitted by Sims is lacking several elements required by 
the Chicago Municipal Code.  
 
An annual recycling report must contain "the approximate percentage of each type or category of 
recyclable material collected by the permittee" (see Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-2535(a)(3)). 
In Sims' 2023 Annual Recycling Report the table labeled "Percentage of Recyclable Materials 
Collected per Facility" has been left completely blank. Sims has provided no information 
regarding the approximate percentage of each category of waste material the company collected 
in 2023. This information is required by the code, and was not provided. 
 
An annual recycling report must also contain "the name and location to which each type or 
category of recyclable material was delivered" (see Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-2535(a)(3)). 
In Sims' 2023 Annual Recycling Report the tables labeled "Percentage of Recyclable Materials 
Collected per Facility", "Approximate Percentage of Construction and Demolition Debris 
Collected and the Receiving Facility", and "Approximate Percentage of Waste delivered to Each 
Facility" require entries for "Name of Facility", "Name of Receiving Facility", and "Facility 
Name" (respectively). All of these entry columns have been left blank by Sims. Sims has 
provided no information as to the name and location of any facilities which have received the 
various categories of recyclable material. This information is required by the code, and has not 
been provided. 
 
An annual recycling report also requires information regarding "the approximate percentage of 
each type or category of recyclable material delivered to each named location" (see Chicago 
Municipal Code 11-4-2535(a)(3)). While Sims' 2023 Annual Recycling Report contains some 
figures regarding Gross Tonnage of certain materials collected, there is no information regarding 
the percentage of each category of material nor to what locations such material was delivered 
(see Sims' 2023 Annual Recycling Report tables labeled "Percentage of Recyclable Materials 
Collected per Facility", "Approximate Percentage of Construction and Demolition Debris 



Collected and the Receiving Facility", and "Approximate Percentage of Waste delivered to Each 
Facility"). Again this is information required by the code which Sims has failed to provide.  
 
The information referenced above is required by the Chicago Municipal Code and is not 
optional. The code uses very strong language in saying that "The annual report...shall contain the 
following data and information..." (see Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-2535(a)). The use of 
"shall" makes it quite clear that providing each subcategory of information is compulsory. Since 
Sims has not provided this vital and necessary information required by the code, their 2023 
Annual Recycling Report should be considered incomplete.  
 
The Chicago Municipal Code anticipated that a company might submit an incomplete Annual 
Recycling Report. According to the code, "If a permittee under this section... submits an 
incomplete annual recycling report, such permittee's permit under this section shall not be 
renewed by the Department of Public Health until such time that the annual recycling report 
required under Section 11-4-250 is submitted and is complete." (Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-
2520). Again, the use of "shall" requires CDPH to deny the renewal of a Large Recycling 
Facility operating permit when an Annual Recycling Report is incomplete. For this reason, 
CDPH must not renew Sims' Large Recycling Facility operating permit. 
 

Sims’ Air Dispersion Modeling Report is Flawed 
 
The Air Dispersion Modeling Report submitted by Sims with their permit application was 
created by making assumptions about the performance of the "future emission control system". 
However the actual efficiency of the system is unknown and has not been tested. CDPH should 
require actual data on the efficiency of the Air Pollution Controls when all Air Pollution Controls 
are installed and in working order.  
 

Sims Poses an Unacceptable Risk to the Health of Pilsen Residents 

 
A Risk Assessment Study is Needed 

 
Sims is located in an Environmental Justice Neighborhood and is located within a half mile of 
multiple schools for children. When evaluating whether to grant an LRF permit for General Iron 
to operate on Chicago's Southeast side, a Health Impact Assessment was done. This Assessment 
took into account characteristics of the neighborhood and its residents which stood to be affected 
by the Recycling Facility.  
 
When General Iron's Southeast LRF permit was denied the Health Assessment was a big part of 
the reasoning for that decision. CDPH took into consideration the health factors of the residents 
near the facility and that the area was already overburdened by pollution in denying the General 
Iron permit.  
 
If CDPH thought a risk assessment for the Southeast side of Chicago was necessary to properly 
evaluate the potential danger to members of that community, the potential danger to residents of 
Pilsen should also be assessed. The neighborhood characteristics and demographics should be 
considered as well as the current health issues and burdens experienced by Pilsen residents. 



Pilsen residents suffer with asthma, respiratory disease, heart disease, cancer, and lung disease at 
disproportionately high levels compared to the City of Chicago Generally. These factors must be 
studied and considered by CDPH before a permit decision can be made. If CDPH will not deny 
Sims’ permit application at this time, CDPH should instead pause the permit process so that  
CDPH can perform a Risk Assessment. Only after a comprehensive study of the risks posed by Sims 
to Pilsen residents should a permit decision be made. 
 
To not properly evaluate the risks to Pilsen Residents would both be discriminatory and go against 
the City’s commitments in the HUD Agreement to end City practices of Environmental 
Discrimination. To require a Risk Assessment for one community but not another unfair, 
unequitable, and discriminatory. 
 

Sims is located in an EJ Neighborhood 
 

The City of Chicago and CDPH are required by the Consent Decree with HUD to make sure city 
decisions do not exacerbate problems of Environmental Racism in the city. Pilsen is a 
community already overburdened by industry and pollution. Pilsen is also home to vulnerable 
populations which need enhanced protections as is required by federal fair housing law. 
 

EPA’s Conclusion is unsupported, offers no evidence or analysis, and does not properly 

assess health risks to the community 
 
The conclusion from the EPA that "emissions from Sims would not cause either short- or long-
term health effects for the community near the facility" is conclusory and does not provide any 
specific evidence or analysis to show how this conclusion was reached. If the EPA has come to 
this conclusion, they should submit a detailed report which cites the particular data used, the 
methods employed, and the analysis which leads to the conclusion. The brief paragraph posted 
on the EPA website is merely conclusory and should not be considered by the CDPH. 
Additionally, EPA qualifies their position by saying they adopt the conclusion only "if 
monitoring data collected over the last year represent typical levels". There has been no evidence 
that this does represent typical levels. The monitoring data should be compared with the data 
about how much material was processed by the shredder on any given day. Sims is allowed to 
shred 3,000 gross tonnes of material per day, however if they have limited their daily capacity 
during the past year of air monitoring so that the particulate in the air would not exceed 
standards, this should not be considered what the "typical levels" of air pollution would be. (e.g. 
If Sims is allowed under their permit to shred 3000 gross tonnes of material per day, but has 
limited daily shredding to 1000 gross tonnes of material per day during air monitoring this will 
not show what air pollution levels will be when they reach their allowable limit of 3000 gross 
tonnes of material per day.  
 
EPA also claims that they were able to reach their conclusion that the community will not see 
any negative short- or long-term health effects by comparing "monitoring results to current 
health benchmarks. This does not constitute a proper Risk Assessment, is methodologically 
flawed, does not differentiate between adults and children, and utilizes no localized or 
community specific factors. For these reasons the conclusion reached by EPA should be 
disregarded by CDPH. EPA was also silent on the impact of Sims being located in close 



proximity to multiple schools and what role this factor might play in the risk calculation for 
children living or attending school in the area. 
 

New Special Conditions is Not Enough to Protect Pilsen Residents 

 
CDPH has a long history of failing hold Sims responsible for violations of the Chicago 
Municipal Code and the LRF rules. CDPH has failed to properly exercise their enforcement 
powers against Sims for violations of the Chicago Municipal Code and the LRF rules. CDPH has 
failed to enforce the conditions placed upon Sims in the permit which they are currently 
operating under. For these reasons, additional restrictions within a permit granted to Sims will 
not be adequate to protect the residents of Pilsen from the harms of Sims. CDPH does not 
enforce the current restrictions placed upon Sims in their operating permit so adding new and 
enhanced restrictions and Special Conditions will not be an adequate safeguard for the residents 
of Pilsen.  
 

Draft Permit Specific Comments 

 
Permit Duration 

The cover letter of the Draft Permit says that “This permit allows for the operation of the Facility 
from November 16th, 2021, to November 15th, 2024, upon which time the permit shall 
terminate on its own terms. On or before to November 15th, 2024, the Permittee may apply to 
the CDPH for a new operating permit for the following year.” If CDPH does intend to issue a 
permit to Sims giving them a very short term permit is preferable to a long term permit. 
According to this draft, Sims would have a new operating permit for only part of the month of 
November 2024. Talking to Pilsen community members, they like the idea that Sims will have to 
again file for a new permit almost immediately. The duration of the permit is such an important 
part of this Draft Permit, that if CDPH did not intend to issue a permit which would expire in 
November of 2024 then a new Draft Permit should be made public and a new comment period 
should be opened. It is obvious from this Draft Permit that CDPH intends to only issue a very 
short term permit to Sims before requiring them to apply again for an operating permit. Many 
Pilsen residents would have doubtless provided comment on the Draft Permit if the Draft Permit 
expressed an intention by CDPH to issue a permit with a longer duration than the one shown 
here. 
 

Applicable Law 
The third paragraph of the Draft Permit Cover Letter states that Sims must “fully comply” with 
the Municipal Code of Chicago and the Large Recycling Facility Rules, issued June 5th, 2020 
(“LRF Rules”). The permit should also reflect that Sims is required to “fully comply” with the 
2014 Recycling Facility Rules (Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, March 2014). 
 

Lack of Defined Sanctions 
All requirements contained within the Draft Permit (with only a couple exceptions) read as 
aspirational and not mandatory due to a lack of sanction attached for failure to comply. Section 
108 of Attachment B: Special Conditions (p 15) says “Failure to secure or maintain the permits, 
approvals, or authorizations under this subsection is grounds for suspension or revocation of this 
permit.”. Strong language like this allowing for the operating permit to be revoked if the specific 



requirements of that section are not followed is rarely found in the permit. This implies that all 
other failures to follow the conditions of the permit would not result in the revocation of the 
permit. However these various other requirements do not include any alternate sanction should 
compliance be withheld.  
 
Some examples include: 

- Material Handling “When transporting material to and from the Facility, the material 
shall fit entirely within the truck or trailer.” (p 3) 

- Attachment B: Special Conditions “The Facility may receive and process no more than 
3,000 tons per day of recyclable materials…” (p 4) 

- Attachment B: Special Conditions “The Permittee shall maintain a twenty (20) foot setback 
between any waterway river and any stockpiles, as measured from the edge of the stockpile 
closest to the waterway.” (p 8) 

- Attachment B: Special Conditions “The Permittee shall maintain an inventory of all 
vehicles and equipment powered by a non-road diesel engine.” (p 14) 

 
Even though the permit uses the language “shall” denoting that these things are compulsory, 
there is no sanction anticipated should Sims fall short. What happens is material in transport does 
not fit entirely within a truck or trailer. If Sims will not lose their permit and there is no other 
sanction included is the requirement useless? 
 
If Sims processes more than 3,000 tins per day, what happens? 
 
If Sims does not maintain a 20 foot setback from the river, what happens? 
 
If an inventory of diesel vehicles and equipment is not maintained, or is inadequately or 
improperly maintained, what happens? 
 
The entire permit reads this way and leaves the public with little faith that these things will 
actually be enforced. Both because CDPH has a track record of failing to enforce their own rules 
and requirements, but also because the permit itself does not include punitive actions should 
there be a failure in one of these specific areas.  
 

Permitting the Stationary Shear Now Encourages Law-Breaking 
 
The Stationary Shear which Sims constructed and operated without permission from CDPH or 
the IL EPA should not be included among the pieces of equipment Sims is allowed to operate 
under their permit. On Page 5 of the Draft Permit, Attachment B: Special Conditions, Table One 
lists all of the equipment which Sims is allowed to operate under the (soon to be issued) permit. 
In Table One a “SHEAR” is included. This is the first time Sims has requested permission to 
operate this piece of equipment. Sims’ current permit does not include this piece of equipment. 
Sims requested no variance from CDPH to operate this piece of equipment. Sims has not 
submitted any permit amendments to their currently held operating permit related to the 
installation and operation of a Stationary Shear. Sims has not sought a modification permit as 
required when new equipment is installed. Sims has sought a permit renewal when they should 
be seeking a Modification Permit. Sims constructed the Stationary Shear and has operated it for 
years without any approval from CDPH and without following the law and its requirements. 



 
If Sims can simply install and operate an emission causing device without first seeking 
permission from State and Local regulators but nevertheless get permission to operate the device 
the next time they want to renew their permit, the Chicago Municipal Code and the CDPH LRF 
Rules are rendered meaningless and a joke. Rewarding this brand of lawlessness is 
unconscionable and not in the best interest of the people of Chicago or the Residents of Pilsen. 
 

Other Powers CDPH Could Use 

 
Sims has engaged in actions which are grounds for Permit Revocation 

 
“5.0 Grounds for Permit Revocation or Suspension. In accordance with Section 11-4-030 of the 
Code, and the notice and hearing provisions referenced therein, the Commissioner may revoke, 
suspend, or specially condition a recycling facility permit at any time if the permitted person or 
entity, any owner or officer of the permitted entity, or any person having control of the permitted 
entity or any of its operations, has: 
(1) Violated any provision of Chapter 11-4 of the Code relevant to the permit or any regulation 
promulgated thereunder; 
(2) Violated any term or condition of the Recycling Facility Permit; 
(3) Violated any provision of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance relevant to the permit or any 
regulation promulgated thereunder; or 
(4) Knowingly submitted a materially false or inaccurate statement in the permit application or 
any other document submitted to the Commissioner in support of such permit application.”21 
 
The Chicago Municipal Code also provides a mechanism by which a LRF Permit can be 
revoked: 
 
“In addition to the penalties provided in this section, in addition to the grounds for permit 
revocation provided elsewhere in this chapter, and in addition to any special permit condition 
imposed during the issuance of a permit or authorization, the commissioner may revoke, suspend 
or specially condition, a permit or written authorization, at any time if the permitted person or 
entity, any owner or officer of the permitted entity, or any person having control of the permitted 
entity or any of its operations, has:  
(1) violated any provisions of this chapter relevant to the permit or authorization or any 
regulation promulgated thereunder;  
(2)  violated any term or condition of the permit or authorization;  
(3)  violated the Chicago Zoning Ordinance relevant to the permit or authorization or any 
regulation  
promulgated thereunder; or  
(4) knowingly submitted a materially false or inaccurate statement in the permit or authorization 
application or any other document submitted to the commissioner in support of such 
application.”  
 

 
21 Section 5.0, City of Chicago Department of Public Health - Rules and Regulations for Recycling Facilities, March 
2014 



(d) In addition to the penalties provided in this section, the commissioner may issue an 
emergency or non- emergency cessation or abatement order in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 11-4-025 of this Code.22 
 
Sims has violated state, federal, and Chicago local laws numerous times sine 2016. The IL AG 
suit against Sims evidences multiple ways in which Sims has acted in bad faith, broke the law, 
and submitted false information to CDPH as well as state and federal regulators. The installation 
and operation of the Stationary Shear is a glaring example of this type of continued and wanton 
conduct. For this reason, permit revocation is appropriate.  
 

CDPH also has the power to issue an Emergency or Non-Emergency Cessation Order 
 
“In addition to the penalties provided in this section, the commissioner may issue an emergency 
or non-emergency cessation or abatement order in accordance with the provisions of Section 11-
4-025 of this Code.”23 
 
The Chicago Municipal Code allows CDPH to order polluters to cease operations when their 
activities constitute a public nuisance. The commissioner of CDPH can issue an order for 
emergency cessation or abatement: 
“Emergency cessation and abatement. 
(1) Emergency cessation – Authority. The Commissioner is hereby authorized to issue an 
emergency cessation order to any person who the Commissioner concludes is (i) causing, 
creating or contributing to any activity or condition that poses an imminent and substantial risk 
to the public health or safety or to the environment; or (ii) operating a facility or conducting an 
activity without a required permit or other written authorization issued by the Commissioner. 
(2) Emergency abatement – Authority. In the event that the Commissioner concludes that any 
person is causing, creating or contributing to any activity or condition that has created, or is 
creating, an imminent and substantial risk to the public health or safety or to the environment, 
then the Commissioner may order such person to abate the risk within a time frame prescribed by 
the Commissioner.”24 
 
The Commissioner also has the power to issue orders of cessation or abatement when there is a 
public nuisance which does not constitute an emergency: 
 
“Non-emergency cessation and non-emergency abatement.  
(1) Non-emergency cessation – Authority. The Commissioner is hereby authorized to issue a 
non-emergency cessation order to any person, in the event that the Commissioner determines that 
any such person is violating any of the provisions of this Code which are under the jurisdiction 
of the Commissioner or the rules promulgated thereunder or the conditions of any permit or 
authorization issued thereunder, but such violation does not pose an imminent and substantial 
risk to the public health or safety or to the environment as defined in subsection (a)(1) above.  
(2) Non-emergency abatement – Authority.  

 
22 Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-030(c) 
23 Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-030(d) 
24 Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-025(b) 
 



(A) If the Commissioner determines that any person is violating any of the provisions of this 
Code which are under the jurisdiction of the Commissioner or the rules promulgated thereunder 
or the conditions of any permit or authorization issued thereunder, but such violation has not 
created, or is not creating, an imminent and substantial risk to the public health or safety or to the 
environment as defined in subsection (a)(1) above, then the Commissioner may provide the 
person with a written order to address and correct the violation(s) within a time frame prescribed 
by the Commissioner.”25 
 
Sims history and repeated actions of ignoring laws and regulations meant to protect the public 
from environmental harms constitutes “an imminent and substantial risk to the public health or 
safety or to the environment”. Use of the Commissioner’s power to issue an emergency cessation 
or abatement order would be appropriate. Should the Commissioner not believe the actions of 
Sims represent “an imminent and substantial risk to the public health” or “the environment”, a 
non-emergency cessation or abatement order would certainly be appropriate.  
 
 
Comments by Brian McKeon,  
Lucha por la Villita Community Organization 
 

 
25 Chicago Municipal Code 11-4-025(c) 


